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02 City Council, 7:00 p.m., Council Chamber  

 09 Tax Abatement Review Committee, 5:30 p.m., Admin Conference Room  

 10 Tax Increment Finance Authority, 4:00 p.m., Admin Conference Room  

 12  Zoning Board of Appeals, 7:00 p.m., Council Chamber  

 16 City Council, 7:00 p.m., Council Chamber  

 24 Library Board, 4:30 p.m., Library Conference Room   

 24 Planning Commission/Recreation Commission, 7:00, Council Chamber   

 25 Beautification Advisory Commission, 6:00 p.m., Admin Conference Room  

    

 

                AUBURN HILLS MEETING SCHEDULE 
248-370-9402 



The City of Auburn Hills 
Regular City Council Meeting 

Monday, April 2, 2012 * 7:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 

           
 

 
 
         
 

Council Chamber    1827 N. Squirrel Road    Auburn Hills MI 
248-370-9402  www.auburnhills.org 

 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER   

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

3. ROLL CALL OF COUNCIL  

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – March 19, 2012 

5. APPOINTMENTS & PRESENTATIONS  

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
in its normal sequence on the agenda. 

7a. Board and Commission Minutes 
7a.1. Planning Commission – March 1, 2012 
7a.2. Public Safety Advisory Committee – March 12, 2012 
7a.3. Planning Commission – March 27, 2012 
 

7b. Motion – Approve a request from Battaglia’s LL, LLC to transfer ownership of an escrowed 2011  Class C & 
SDM licensed business. 

 
8. OLD BUSINESS –  

9. NEW BUSINESS  

9a. Motion – To Accept the Planning Commission’s Findings and Grant Permission to Distribute the Revised Draft 
Amendment to the Master Land Use Plan for the Auburn Road Corridor - West Side 

9b. Motion - to approve the City of Auburn Hills Department of Public Service membership into the Michigan        
Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network Mutual Aid Authority.  

 
9c. Motion - to award the 2012-2014 Lawn and Ornamental Bed Maintenance Bid to: U.S. Lawns, 15040 Dumay, 

Southgate, MI 48195. 

9d. Motion - to approve the purchase of a 2012 Aerial Lift Truck replacement be awarded to Cannon Truck 
Equipment, 51761 Danview Technology Court, Shelby Twp., MI  48315 at a total cost of $76,978.00. 

10.  COMMENTS AND MOTIONS FROM COUNCIL 

11.  CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

12.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

13.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

City Council meeting minutes are on file in the City Clerk’s office.  NOTE:  Anyone planning to attend the meeting who has 
need of special assistance under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) is asked to contact the City Clerk's Office at 370-9402 or the City 

Manager's Office at 370-9440 48 hours prior to the meeting.  Staff will be pleased to make the necessary arrangements.   
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             March 19, 2012 
 
CALL TO ORDER: by Mayor McDonald at 7:00 p.m. 
LOCATION:  City Council Chamber, 1827 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills, MI 48326 

         Present: Mayor McDonald, Mayor Pro Tem Hammond, Council Members Doyle, Kittle, Knight, 
McDaniel, Verbeke 

          Absent: None 
 Also Present: Assistant City Manager Tanghe, Police Lt. Hardesty, Treasurer Buschmohle, City Clerk 

Kowal, City Assessors Bennett & Lohmeier, City Attorney Beckerleg, City Engineer 
Juidici, TIFA Chair Pat Hassett, TIFA Members Thornton, Ardelean and Dilland, Retired 
TIFA Chair Bennett 

   8 Guests   

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  4a. Regular City Council Meeting – March 5, 2012 

Moved by Knight; Seconded by Hammond. 
 RESOLVED: To approve the March 5, 2012 Regular City Council Meeting with amendments as 
submitted and to include the City Clerk in the section „Also Present‟. 

VOTE: Yes:  Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDonald, McDaniel, Verbeke 
      No:  None        Motion carried (7-0) 

RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.042 

5. APPOINTMENTS & PRESENTATIONS  
5a. Motion – Confirm Reappointment of Michael Napier to the Local Officials Compensation Commission for a 
term ending February 28, 2017. 
(This portion verbatim) 
Mayor McDonald: Item 5, Appointments and Presentations.  We have the reappointment of Michael Napier to 
the Local Officials Compensation Commission.  Mr. Napier, I believe you’re here.  Please come up so 
everybody can see you, we have new people on City Council and they’d like to know who our citizens are 
who are volunteer their time that sits on various boards.   
Mr. Napier: I’ll give you a little short order on history.  I’ve been in law enforcement for 39 years, a retired 
Pontiac police officer, currently work full time for the federal government, CDP, a federal officer for homeland 
security.   
Mayor McDonald:  That’s great, that’s great. 
Mr. Napier:  I’ve been on the compensation board for six years, eight years, it’s been a long time.   
Ms. Doyle: Mr. Mayor. 
Mayor McDonald: Ms. Doyle. 
Ms. Doyle: I had a couple of questions and concerns about this nomination, number one, my one question 
was how long you been on there, is it six, is it eight, how many you been on there?  Do we know?  This is an 
appointment for five more years, is that right?   
Mayor McDonald: Yeah, they only meet in odd years, they meet within the five years they meet three times. 

The City of Auburn Hills 

City Council Meeting 

Minutes 
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Ms. Doyle: Okay.  And my other questions were, I see that we have a new form that I think is great in terms of 
asking for more background from people that are appointed to these boards and commissions and this says 
Resume for Appointments to City Board and Commissions and I look at it and to me this is an application.   
And what I’m really expecting from important appointments is a resume.  And you know there is no real 
resume here.  What I learned from looking at this is your references are your neighbors, you know three 
neighbors that live on the same street with you, I see that you’re a college graduate, and that you’ve live in 
auburn Hills for a long time, and that I know nothing about your other work, besides the fact right now, I think 
you’ve been working for homeland security for about the last four years.  I know nothing else about your 
background, that make you, brings some expertise to the question of compensation of public officials.  So I’m 
really uncomfortable with the amount of information I have available here, right here to support this right now.     
Mayor McDonald: Well Ms. Doyle, truthfully most citizens that serve on these boards when they come before 
any to serve on they do not have that expertise.  I’m sure when you were appointed to the planning 
commission did you have expertise in the planning… 
Ms. Doyle: No, but I went through training and I became a certified citizen planner, which I think is a good 
thing that we provide training.  But I’m just saying he may be an excellent appointee, I’m just saying at this 
point for me to vote on this with the amount of information I have, I don’t have enough for a five year 
appointment to a really important board. 
Mayor McDonald: Council, any other questions. 
Mr. Kittle: Mr. Mayor, have you served on any other boards, have you any interest in any other boards in the 
City?  The one that seems like to me to match your skill set perfectly would be the public safety advisory 
committee. 
Mr. Napier: It would be. I never applied for it, another Council person here at, there was another person 
already on it so they persuaded me to do this board instead of the commission and I’ve been on it ever since.    
I do work full time and one of the reasons I’m on the compensation board is because it meets probably less 
than any other board.  The only other experience I would have is, I was a sergeant for Pontiac, had 
subordinates beneath me. 
Mayor McDonald: Truthfully Mr. Napier, I’ll say, you do have experience, you’ve been on it either six or eight 
years, whatever it may be.   
Mr. Napier:  I understand what you’re saying.  
Mayor McDonald: You get plenty of information prior to a meeting.  
Mr. Napier: Yes. 
Mayor McDonald: So, I’m going to say nobody on that board takes it lightly.  
Mr. Napier: No, not at all.  
Mayor McDonald: So I would say you do have that experience. 
Mr. Napier: Yeah, being on this board I have. 
Mr. Kittle: Mr. Mayor, may I ask a question? Mr. Napier other than the fact than that board meets not as 
regularly what would be your other interests as far as serving on that board, what draws you to wanting to 
continue to serve on that board? 
Mr. Napier: Well I live in Auburn Hills, I love the community, I want to make sure that it’s well represented and 
we appreciate the people that serve and Council people are very important as far as I’m concerned and to 
make sure they are fairly compensated for what they do. 
Mr. McDaniel: Okay.  The only concern I had was, I was actually at the last compensation meeting that was held 
in 2011 in which you had made a statement that was in strong support of maintaining a more lucrative 
benefits package for Council members than what our current city employees have.  So because of that 
reason, I don’t believe personally that providing better benefits to council members than what our current 
employees have I was not in favor of supporting this reappointment.  I just wanted to let you know that. 
Mr. Napier: Yes, I appreciate that. 
Ms. Doyle: Mr. Mayor? 
Mayor McDonald: Yes? 
Ms. Doyle: The one other thing I guess, I’d like to add is I really feel strongly about continuing to get you 
know, get more people from our community serving on these boards and commissions.  And Mr. Napier’s 
been on here for either six years or eight years, to appoint him for five more years, would make 13 years, I’m 
not comfortable with that.  There might be another board that would be great for you to serve on.  I mean I’d 
love for you to serve but perhaps another one, but I’m not comfortable with this appointment.   
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Mayor McDonald: You’re not comfortable with what, for what reason, because he served for six or eight 
years? 
Ms. Doyle: Well, for the first reasons I said, is that I don’t really have any background and what’s on this 
application and I’d love to see his resume.  You know you’ve been a professional working person for 39 
years, didn’t you say or 30 years, or I’m not sure alls I know is  
Mr. Napier: I’ve been working since I was 12 years old. 
Ms. Doyle: Okay, there you go.  Alright, but anyway I’d like to see your resume in addition to an application for 
people who come before us for appointments.  And this is a five year appointment and so I would either vote 
against it or I would ask for it to be postponed.   
Mayor McDonald: Anyone else? 
Mr. Kittle:  I would like to add just one more comment Mr. Mayor.  I’d just like us to see us mix it up a little bit 
more.  I mean we just appointed some new people to the Public Safety Advisory Committee and Mr. Napier 
we certainly appreciate your service to the community and that.  I just think there’s better suited opportunities 
there potentially.  And personally I’d like to see us mix it up and more breeding, cross training amongst the 
various boards, just like we do on Council.   
Mayor McDonald: Do we? 
Mr. Kittle: I can speak personally.  We try to do on Council. 
Mayor McDonald: I’d be open for a motion. 
Ms. Hammond:  Mr. Mayor? 
Mayor McDonald: Ms. Hammond 
Ms. Hammond:  I’d like to confirm the Reappointment of Michael Napier to the Local Officials Compensation 
Commission for a term ending February 28, 2017. 
Mayor McDonald: It’s moved by Ms. Hammond.  Do I have support? 
Mr. Knight: Support. 
Mayor McDonald: Supported by Mr. Knight.  Further discussion?  Then I guess we’re ready to vote. 
Ms. Kowal:  Ms. Hammond? 
Ms. Hammond: Yes 
Ms. Kowal:  Mr. Knight? 
Mr. Knight: Yes 
Ms. Kowal:  Ms. Doyle? 
Ms. Doyle: No 
Ms. Kowal:  Mr. Kittle? 
Mr. Kittle: No 

  Ms. Kowal: Mr. McDaniel? 
  Mr. McDaniel: No 

Ms. Kowal:  Ms. Verbeke? 
Ms. Verbeke:  No 
Ms. Kowal: Mayor McDonald? 
Mayor McDonald: Yes 
Ms. Kowal: Motion Fails 3-4 
Mayor McDonald: Sorry Mr. Napier, it’s obvious some people are… 
Mr. Napier: It’s okay, I don’t have any hurt feelings about it. 
Mayor McDonald: Thank you 
Ms. Hammond: Thank you for your years of service  
Mr. Napier: Okay, thank you. 

Moved by Hammond; Seconded by Knight.  
RESOLVED: To confirm the Reappointment of Michael Napier to the Local Officials 
Compensation Commission for a term ending February 28, 2017. 

VOTE: Yes: Hammond, Knight, McDonald  
      No: Doyle, Kittle, McDaniel, Verbeke     Motion FAILED (3-4) 
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RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.043 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Kay Sendegas expressed her desire for Council to seriously consider some type of senior housing in the City.  
She suggested with the City purchasing property that they be on the lookout for property that might 
accommodate condo/cottage type senior housing.  The American House and Presbyterian Village have 
cottage type housing for seniors.  With the many seniors living in and supporting Auburn Hills, there is a need 
and many seniors would still prefer to live independently as opposed to living in a group situation.  Auburn 
Hills has so much to offer, including colleges and student housing, the only link missing is senior housing. 

Mr. Knight stated the suggestion has been taken seriously and there has been some discussion with Council 
and City staff.  

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Kittle requested Items 7b. and 7e. be removed from the Consent Agenda. 

7a. Board and Commission Minutes 
7a.1. Retiree Health Care Board – February 8, 2012 
7a.2. Pension Board – February 8, 2012 
7a.3. Tax Abatement Review Committee – February 13, 2012 
7a.4. Tax Increment Finance Authority – March 13, 2012 

7c. Motion – Approve Purchase of Rifle Sound Suppressors  
 RESOLVED:  To approve acceptance of the bid of Michigan Police Equipment Company of Charlotte 

Michigan for the purchase of suppressors as needed by the Auburn Hills Police Department and 
authorize the City Manager to convey acceptance by purchase order. 

7d. Motion – Approve Purchase of 17 Air Bottles – Self Contained Breathing Apparatus SCBA 
RESOLVED: To approve the purchase of 17 SCBA bottles by the Auburn Hills Fire Department at a 
cost of $17,612. 
Moved by McDaniel; Seconded by Verbeke. 

RESOLVED: To approve the Consent Agenda Items 7a., 7c. and 7d. 
VOTE: Yes:  Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDonald, McDaniel, Verbeke 
        No:  None        Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.044 

7b. Motion – Approve a request from Rochester Mills Production Brewery, LLC for a new Micro Brewer License 
Mr. Kittle stated he removed this item from the Consent Agenda as the petitioner was here. He wanted to give 
him the opportunity to tell Council about the new plans.  

Mike Plesz, owner, stated production should begin in two weeks. He is very happy to be in Auburn Hills and 
will be inviting City Council for a grand tour of the facility.  This will be the third largest brewery system of this 
type in Michigan and hope to be the second largest brewing producer in Michigan within two years.  He plans 
on staying in this facility long term.   
There are plans to have an open house for the public as well as hosting a few charity events.   
Moved by Kittle; Seconded by McDaniel. 

RESOLVED: To adopt the resolution approving the request from Rochester Mills Production 
Brewery, LLC for a new Micro Brewer License. 

VOTE: Yes:  Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDonald, McDaniel, Verbeke 
        No:  None        Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.045 

7e. Motion – Approve Oakland County Tactical Training Consortium “OAK-TAC”  Inter-local Agreement with the 
County of Oakland – Office of the Sheriff, City of Bloomfield Hills, City of Farmington Hills, City of Ferndale, 
City of Novi, City of Oak Park, City of Royal Oak, and City of Troy. 
Mr. Kittle indicated he gets excited when seeing initiatives for inter-government cooperation, consolidations or 
collaborations and wanted to recognize this particular agreement and for that reason removed this from the 
Consent Agenda.  He asked if Oakland County was leading this initiative and if more communities were able 
to join this group.   
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Lt. Hardesty stated there is a Board that oversees this consortium, though Oakland County has a large 
presence.  And yes, there is hope that more communities will become involved in the consortium.  
Mr. Kittle suggested this be added to the shared services data. 
Moved by Kittle; Seconded by McDaniel. 

RESOLVED:  To approve the Oakland County Tactical Training Consortium Inter-local Agreement 
and authorize the Chief of Police to sign the agreement. 

Ms. Doyle noted Pontiac was not listed among the participating communities and asked if that is because 
Oakland County Sherriff’s Department is now policing Pontiac. 
Lt. Hardesty explained to the best of his knowledge, Pontiac is covered because Oakland County Sherriff’s 
Department is the policing agency, as they are in many other communities; however, he can’t speak on behalf 
of the City of Pontiac.     
It was the understanding of Lt. Hardesty that the Oakland County Board of Commissioners approval would be 
needed for any communities in which the Oakland County Sherriff’s Department does the policing. 
Mr. McDaniel noted half of the equipment would be stored in Pontiac. 
Lt. Hardesty confirmed half of the equipment would be stored in Pontiac and the other half in Troy. 
VOTE: Yes:  Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDonald, McDaniel, Verbeke 
        No:  None        Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.046 

8. OLD BUSINESS  

8a.1. Motion – Approve Liquor License Renewal for The Post Bar 
Moved by McDaniel; Seconded by Verbeke. 

RESOLVED: Based upon communication from the Oakland County Treasurer‟s office, and their 
attorneys, which states we cannot deny the renewal of the liquor license for Post Bar due to their 
having filed for bankruptcy,   I move to approve the renewal of the liquor license for Post Bar.   

VOTE: Yes:  Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDonald, McDaniel, Verbeke 
        No:  None        Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.047 

8a.2. Public Hearing/Motion – Oppose Renewal of Liquor License – Duffy’s 

Mayor McDonald explained since the agenda was published, Duffy’s has paid their fees, so a motion to 
approve the renewal is appropriate. 
Moved by Doyle; Seconded by Kittle. 

RESOLVED: To approve the liquor license renewal for Duffy‟s Irish Pub.  
VOTE: Yes:  Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDonald, McDaniel, Verbeke 
        No:  None        Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.048 

8b. Motion – Accept Recommendation of TIFA Board of Directors for Parking Structure Bid Proposal 
Mr. Tanghe recognized TIFA Chair Pat Hassett, TIFA Members Thornton and Dilland, Dennis Burt, President 
of Haussman Construction, construction manager, all in the audience. 
The construction manager was selected a number of months ago and there have been a number of meetings 
since, discussing with staff and consultants the building design.  The initial bid for the construction came in 
substantially higher, approximately $1million more, than what is being asked now for approval.   The funds will 
come from TIFA A district, for this scaled back building containing 233 parking spaces.  The graduate student 
housing will be privately funded and developed by Mr. Burt. 
This is development is unique, because the parking structure isn’t visible from Auburn Road, called “wrapped” 
construction.  The parking is exposed on the west and south sides of the building; one side facing a City 
parking lot and the other Church’s Lumber Yard. The apartments and retail space is approximately 100,000 
square feet; 97 apartment units and 61,000 square foot retail space. In the cost saving effort, the top floor of 
the structure was removed as well as the basement and some of the architectural amenities were removed 
and/or replaced by less expensive alternatives such as replacing face brick with stamped concrete.  
Looking at the renderings of the structure, the TIFA Board asked Mr. Burt if the pre-case concrete could have 
more architectural appeal that what’s been proposed.  Mr. Burt will present the TIFA Board in April with 
possible changes to improve the building’s appearance, if affordable.    
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Mr. Tanghe stated there is an elevator in the structure.  Also at the base of the building is stonework, similar 
to other stonework that identifies with the City.   
The original budget for this project was $4.5 million or $4.6 million and is still a four floor parking structure 
even though the basement parking and the upper half-floor have been removed.    
Mr. Burt confirmed for Mr. Kittle, that yes, technically another floor could be added to the top of the structure if 
needed; however, it would be cost prohibitive and also by removing the extra half-floor, the footings were 
lightened a bit.  
Mr. Knight is concerned with having only one entrance off of Primary, when originally two entrances were 
proposed.  He noted if there was a stalled car or an accident, it could lock up the garage. 
Mr. Tanghe explained the west entrance on the original plan accessed directly into the basement level.  
Responding to Mr. Knight, Mr. Tanghe explained this project has been approved by both the Planning 
Commission and City Council and tonight’s request is approving the funding.  
Mr. Knight noted approval is needed with all of the changes made to the building plans. 
Mr. Tanghe explained the use is the same and the plan modified, but there were no major changes.   
Mr. Knight disagreed, noting removing an entrance, eliminating the basement and the top half floor are major 
changes to the plan.  He feels this is being rushed through, and he doesn’t want any regrets. 
Ms. Hammond didn’t feel it is being rushed through; it’s been a steady process.  She did ask if approved, how 
soon before breaking ground. 
Mr. Tanghe stated work will begin later this week or next week at the latest. 
Mr. Tanghe confirmed for Ms. Doyle there is one entrance and one exit lane; it would be possible to direct 
traffic to one lane or the other if one were blocked. 
Mr. Burt explained the pedestrian entrances are located on the southeast corner at Primary and Grey Roads 
where there is a stairwell and elevator shaft and the northwest entrance which is closer to Auburn Road. 
In response to Ms. Verbeke, Mr. Tanghe explained the second vehicle access was removed because it 
directly accessed the basement level of the garage.  The building could have been redesigned to include a 
second vehicle access; however, parking spaces would have been eliminated to accommodate the access. 
Mr. Kittle stated he is a little unsettled with moving quickly forward and asked if there is confidence that once 
built there will be tenants.   
Mr. Tanghe stated Mr. Burt has a long term relationship with the law school and the law school was the 
catalyst for this project; the idea of housing for their students.  Oakland University was then included in the 
discussions; last fall OU had to house students in local hotels because of the lack of space.  There have been 
a number of discussions with the housing staff at OU and the demand appears to be there for this type of 
product.  When registering for school this fall, OU’s website will include this as an option for on campus 
housing.   
Mayor McDonald thanked the TIFA Board for their due diligence on this project.  

Moved by McDaniel; Seconded by Hammond. 
RESOLVED: To accept the TIFA Board‟s recommendation and approve the bid proposal from 
Haussman Construction Company as Construction Manager, in the not-to-exceed amount of 
$4,772,107.30 as found in the spreadsheet titled “Cost Summary”, subject to authorized change 
orders, to build the downtown parking structure in accordance with the plans and specifications 
submitted, and the terms and conditions contained in the AIA-133 Standard Form of Agreement 
between Owner and Construction Manager as Constructor dated September 27, 2011.  Furthermore, 
authorize the TIFA‟s Executive Director to execute an amended agreement containing the Cost 
Summary submitted by the Construction Manager and Architect, and subsequent change orders 
necessary to successfully complete the project.  Funds for the project are available from TIFA District 
A, Account No. 251-000-975-000-35006. 

VOTE: Yes:  Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDonald, McDaniel, Verbeke 
        No:  None        Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.049 

8c. Motion – Approve Final Draft – Property Tax Incentive Policy 
Mr. Bennett noted the proposed Policy includes suggestions made by Council in the Preamble regarding the 
business communication and the window for special projects. 
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Mr. Knight had concerns and didn’t feel he could support the 100% personal property portion if requested by a 
petitioner without any requirements or incentives.  Mr. Kittle explained the property lease must be a longer 
period of time than the abatement; however, a company could break the lease and walk away and the City 
wouldn’t have any opportunity to collect the taxes that were forgiven.  He would like to see a statement in the 
policy requiring the company to remain for a certain number of years after the abatement has expired.  He 
suggested a four year abatement require an additional two years staying at the facility, six year abatement an 
additional three years and eight years an additional four years. 
Mayor McDonald asked Mr. Beckerleg if the personal property tax was being eliminated by the State. Mr. 
Beckerleg confirmed the state legislature is going in that direction and with the elimination the policy will need 
revising.   
Mr. Beckerleg agreed with Mr. Knight that a signed abatement agreement is a binding contract; however, if 
the personal property tax is eliminated one could argue that there is no law, and therefore the contract would 
no longer be in force.       
Mr. Kittle explained there are three tools, the 210, the PA 398 and the PA 328.  The PA 398 and PA 328 both 
state that the applicants may be granted 100% so it would be at the Tax Abatement Review Committee’s 
discretion.   
Mr. Bennett stated the 100% abatement only applies to Public Act 328 which is a company that is receiving a 
MDEC grant; 99% of the businesses in Auburn Hills would not be eligible for that.  IFEC’s are 50%. 
Regarding the personal property tax elimination, Mr. Bennett stated he had heard there would be a phase out, 
start with phasing out the older equipment first.  
Mr. Bennett clarified PA 328 requires the personal property to be 100% exempt from taxes; however the 
duration is flexible.  
Mr. Bennett explained the businesses are still required to meet the business residency requirements, as are 
the other plans.  The businesses must stay the length of the exemption plus the two or four years depending 
on the number of years granted.  
Ms. Doyle agreed with Mr. Knight’s suggestion, it would lend some guidance for decisions. 
Mr. Bennett read in part, Section 6, Business Residency Requirements, As a condition of receiving an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, a Commercial Rehab Exemption Certificate, or a PA 328 
Exemption…is granted for the term of the certificate or exemption plus an additional term after the date of 
expiration…of up to eight years plus two years …or over eight years plus four years.  
Mr. Bennett confirmed for Mr. Knight, the City is covered because of Section 6. 
Moved by Kittle; Seconded by McDaniel. 

RESOLVED: To approve the City of Auburn Hills Property Tax Incentive Policy as presented. 
VOTE: Yes:  Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDonald, McDaniel, Verbeke 
        No:  None        Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.050 

9. NEW BUSINESS  
9a. Motion – Public Hearing and Request to Approve IFEC – Teijin Advanced Composites America Inc. 

Mr. Bennett explained this is a newly incorporated company and new to Auburn Hills.  They will be moving 
into an existing vacant building and investing $6 million.  The company will focus on developing new 
technology for structural automotive applications.   
This property has been vacant for the past two years and is part of an IDD; therefore qualifies for an eight 
year abatement.  A ten year lease on the property was signed, commencing on March 1, 2012. The taxes 
generated by the investment for eight years will be approximately $162,000 including $74,000 in City 
revenues.  The tax savings to the company will also be $162,000 over the eight year term of the abatement.   
Continuing, Mr. Bennett stated this was approved for the eight year tax abatement by the Tax Review 
Committee, beginning December 31, 2012 and ending December 30, 2020. 
Mayor McDonald opened the public hearing opened at 8:10 p.m.  
Eric Haiss, a representative of the company explained Teijin Advanced Composites American, Inc., began 
last year.  The parent company is Teijin, a $10 million multi-industrial conglomerate with products in 
pharmaceuticals, home health care, specialty fibers such as carbon fiber, polyesters as well as resins and 
plastic materials.  Teijin’s headquarters, located in Japan, have over the last several years  been developing 
new technology that allows carbon fiber, which is stronger and lighter than steel, to be used in mass 
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production of automobile development applications. There has been a lot of interest from automotive OEM’s 
regarding this technology.   
Continuing, Mr. Haiss explained the current state of the art, as far as carbon fiber composites, is about a 20 to 
30 minute cycle time to produce one part.  That long cycle time almost makes it cost prohibitive to use these 
lightweight, strong materials for automotive applications.  Teijin has developed technology that allows 
production of those parts in a one minute cycle time, which is on par with any mass produced process.   
In December, a co-development agreement was signed with General Motors to develop Teijin’s parts and 
process with GM’s applications at the Harmon Road facility.  Eventually there are hopes to work with other 
automotive companies as well as GM.  
The intent is to hire 25 employees over the next four years, but that is conservative and things may move 
much faster.   
Responding to Ms. Hammond, Mr. Haiss explained Teijin chose Auburn Hills after looking at approximately 
100 facilities.  The Harmon Road facility is a very good fit, with close proximity to General Motors and Auburn 
Hills is very business friendly. 
Referencing the previous discussion about the tax abatement policy, Ms. Hammond asked Mr. Haiss if there 
were any concerns with the conditions of the policy.  Mr. Haiss stated only one; Auburn Hills is much more 
severe than the State on the clawback issue.   
Ms. Hammond explained Council has the discretion to amend the penalty for businesses not honoring the 
commitment of staying in the City after the abatement has expired or leaving prior to the expiration of the 
abatement. 
Mr. Haiss noted the company hopes to purchase the building and have a long term relationship with Auburn 
Hills. 
Ms. Verbeke asked Ms. Hammond for clarification on allowing a lesser amount of time.   
Ms. Hammond explained Council has looked at on a case-by-case basis; sometimes there have been 
extenuating circumstances.   
Neither Ms. Verbeke nor Mr. Daniels recalled making changes. 
Mr. Beckerleg suggested better terminology is the Council has the ability to decide whether to sue on the 
breach of contract or not.  
Ms. Doyle clarified extenuating circumstances would be bankruptcy or the downturn in the economy and 
automotive industry as was witnessed recently, not because a company was transferring to another location.  
Mr. Bennett stated it has only happened a few times and they have either paid back some of the money or the 
company has filed bankruptcy.   
Mr. Beckerleg stated if a company files bankruptcy, there is no guarantee of any repayment. 
Hearing no further comments, Mayor McDonald closed the public hearing at 8:19 pm. 
Mr. Knight asked if there was some redundancy in number 3 and number 4 of the Agreement. 
Mr. Beckerleg stated there was some, and he would contact Mr. Bennett to discuss. 
Moved by Kittle; Seconded by Doyle. 

RESOLVED: To approve the request for an 8 year IFEC for Teijin Advanced Composites America 
Inc. for a total personal property investment of $6,018,000 by adopting the attached resolution 
(Attachment A).   

VOTE: Yes:   Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 
        No:   None          Motion carried (7-0) 
RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.051 

10. COMMENTS AND MOTIONS FROM COUNCIL 
Mr. McDaniel: 

 Asked Mr. Tanghe for confirmation that Oakland University has not backed out of supporting the 
housing project as many businesses downtown are talking about.   
Mr. Tanghe confirmed he has heard nothing of the sort from Oakland University.  He will ask the 
Vice President of Student Affairs when he meets with him tomorrow.  
 

Mr. Kittle: 
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 Introduced a concept he has discussed with each Council member as well as Mr. Beckerleg and to 
move towards adopting a zero tolerance employee policy.  The policy would primarily address any 
employee, full time, part-time, seasonal, sub-contractors, interns and elected officials from accepting 
any type of gift or gratuity or anything of value from City suppliers and service providers for goods or 
services.  This type of policy is commonly used in the auto industry. 
Mayor McDonald stated more discussion is needed with Council, Human Resources and Mr. 
Beckerleg before any action can be taken.  
Mr. Kittle noted an article that shows Michigan ranks 43 out of 50 states in corruption as reported by 
the States Integrity Investigation Association.  He is not insinuating the City has a problem today, but 
this would assure there wouldn’t be a problem tomorrow.  Auburn Hills could be the first community 
to introduce a zero tolerance policy, and he would like to discuss with Council.   
Ms. Doyle stated she is willing to discuss a possible policy. 
Mr. Knight appreciates Mr. Kittles’ suggestion, and agrees it should be discussed possibly in a 
workshop session prior to a Council meeting. 
Mr. McDaniel too agreed it makes sense for further discussion. 
Mayor McDonald agreed it may be a good policy; however, he wants to make sure there is 
discussion and Human Resources is included in that discussion. 
Mr. Kittle stated he doesn’t want this topic on the Objectives and Goals agenda.  He would like to 
see some action take place and asked how former Mayor McMillin was able to get a campaign 
disclosure ordinance approved.  What is the process for moving something forward? 
Mr. Beckerleg stated with direction from Council, Mr. McMillin instructed the drawing of an 
ordinance.  The ordinance was adopted, but has since been repealed. 
Ms. Doyle noted Mr. McMillin’s ordinance addressed elected officials, whereas this policy would 
include elected officials as well as all City employees. 
Mr. Tanghe said from an HR perspective, there is a policy in place although it’s more broadly written; 
however, some of these concepts could be integrated into the current policy.  Based on interaction 
with collective bargaining, when it comes to arbitrating there is little tolerance for zero tolerance.  He 
suggests caution when proceeding with zero tolerance.  
Mr. Kittle asked for a report possibly within 30 days, he doesn’t want this topic to linger.   
Ms. Doyle suggested checking with other communities as to what type of policies they have in place. 
Mr. Tanghe suggested tightening up and including other definitions into the current policy. 
Mr. Beckerleg noted Council also has a policy in place. 
Mr. Kittle stated there is no other community in the country with a zero tolerance employee policy. 
Mayor McDonald stated there will be a study session prior to the Council meeting, 6:00 p.m., at the 
first meeting in May.  

Ms. Hammond: 
 The skate park is open and very busy and is pleased to see the winter signs down and the spring 

ones up. 

Ms. Doyle: 
 Congratulated the fire department for a wonderful job on handling the large brush fire on Great 

Lakes Crossing and Joslyn Road. 
 Re-enforces the point of senior housing with such a large number of baby-boomers in the area and 

what a great thing for the City to offer. 
 Interested in the community garden that was mentioned in the TIFA minutes. 

Mr. Tanghe stated it wouldn’t happen this year because of the many considerations to explore.  The 
Board will be studying the concept and make a recommendation of opening a community garden in 
the spring of 2013.  

 What an excellent job TIFA and staff did on the downtown parking structure.  
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Ms. Verbeke: 
 Thanked the fire department for the wonderful job they did with the major brush fire, but also wanted 

to recognize and thank the neighboring communities for their help, Waterford, Independence 
Township, Oakland Township, Rochester Hills, Orion Township. 

 April 25, 2012 is the Boys and Girls Club Steak and Burger Dinner. 

Mr. Knight:  
 Suggested the community garden and dog park, if outside the TIFA district should be transferred to 

the parks department and they should be developing the idea.  
Mr. Tanghe explained the property referred to is in a TIF district and other departments are invited to 
participate.  

 His granddaughter graduated from OCC with a degree in computer design, and after being a 
contract employee for three months GM has hired her as a full time employee.  He understands GM 
is desperately trying to hire employees with this type of background but is having difficulty.  If GM 
can’t find employees to fill these positions they may have to go overseas. He suggested that 
everybody pass the word to students looking for a career. 

11. CITY ATTORNEY‟S REPORT – none.  

12. ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER‟S REPORT 
 Apologized for overlooking TIFA members Mike Ardelean and past Chair Clarence Bennett earlier, 

when recognizing the other TIFA members in the audience.   
 Hopes Council is enjoying the pictures of the log cabin renovations that have been sent out on 

Flicker along with other City projects. 
 After discussing the university center project with Avondale’s Dr. Heitsch, Dr. Heitsch approached 

the Avondale Board and asked for additional money to help with the renovations of Stan’s.  The 
renovation would include both floors, with the virtual academy and the local college access network 
being on the second floor and classrooms on the main floor.  The class rooms could be used by the 
local colleges to conduct classes.  The potential is to have 300 to 400 students in the downtown on 
any given day during the week.  That would have a major impact on the economy for the downtown.   
The school board is willing to contribute their entire amount that they have set aside in TIF District A 
for the project. The formality of an agreement with the school board is being wrapped up. 

 Mayor McDonald asked about a date for the student housing. 
Mr. Tanghe explained they must get the building permits and work would likely begin next week.  

 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

Hearing no objections, the meeting adjourned at 8:47 pm. 

____________________________    ______________________________ 
James D. McDonald, Mayor     Terri Kowal, City Clerk  
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Attachment A 

RESOLUTION NO. 12.03.051 

 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING AN INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

FOR TEIJIN ADVANCED COMPOSITES AMERICA INC 

 
 At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Auburn Hills, Oakland County, Michigan, held in the 
Council Chambers at 1827 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills MI 48326 on the 19th day of March, 2012. 

The following resolution was offered by Councilperson Kittle and supported by Councilperson Doyle.         

 WHEREAS, pursuant to P.A. 198, 1974, M.C.L. 207.551 et seq., after a duly noticed public hearing held 
on the 5th day of May, 1986, the City of Auburn Hills, established an Industrial Development District, 
commonly referred to as the De Mattia Development Company Industrial Development District; and 

 WHEREAS, Teijin Advanced Composites America Inc. has filed an application for an Industrial Facility 
Exemption Certificate with the Clerk of the City of Auburn Hills with respect to proposed personal property 
within the De Mattia Development Company Industrial Development District; and  

 WHEREAS, before acting on said application, the City Council of Auburn Hills held a hearing on the 19th 
day of March, 2012  at a regularly scheduled meeting, at which time the applicant, the assessor, and a 
representative of the affected taxing units were given written notice and were afforded an opportunity to be 
heard on said application; and 

WHEREAS, construction and installation of the facility has not begun earlier than six (6) months 
before February 3, 2012, the date of the acceptance of the application for the Industrial Facility Exemption 
Certificate; and 

 WHEREAS, completion of the facility is calculated to and will at the time of issuance of the certificate 
have the reasonable likelihood to retain, create or prevent the loss of employment in Auburn Hills; and 

 WHEREAS, the aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad valorem taxes within the 
City of Auburn Hills after granting this certificate will exceed 5% of an amount equal to the sum of the SEV of 
the unit, plus the SEV of personal and real property thus exempted. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the City Council of Auburn Hills that: 

1. The City Council of Auburn Hills finds and determines that the granting of this Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate, together with the aggregate amount of the Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificates previously granted and currently in force, under Act No. 198 of the Public 
Acts of 1974, shall not have the effect of substantially impeding the operation of the City of 
Auburn Hills, or of impairing the financial soundness of a taxing unit which levies an ad valorem 
property tax in the City of Auburn Hills. 

2. The application for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate with respect to a facility on the 
following described parcel of real property situated within the De Mattia Development Company 
Industrial Development District to wit; 

T3N, R10E, SEC 3 & 4 METRO NORTH TECHNOLOGY PARK PART OF LOT 24 BEG AT NW LOT 
COR, TH N 89-23-31 E 901.50 FT, TH S 00-36-29 E 579.83 FT, TH N 57-51-35 W 1071.87 FT TO BEG 
11-13-91 FR 014 

Parcel Identification Number: 02-14-04-426-016 

is hereby approved for Personal Property Improvements only. 

3. The Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate shall remain in force and effect for a period of 8 
years, and the starting date for the certificate is December 30, 2012 and the ending date is 
December 30, 2020. 
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4. The total project investment approved is $6,018,000. 

5.  Teijin Advanced Composites America Inc. agrees to operate the facility for which the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate is granted for the term of the certificate, plus an additional two 
years after the date of the expiration.  

    AYES:       Doyle, Hammond, Kittle, Knight, McDaniel, McDonald, Verbeke 

 NAYS: None 

 ABSENT: None 

 ABSTENTIONS: None 

                                                                                                        RESOLUTION 12.03.051 ADOPTED (7-0) 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN) 

 )SS 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND) 

 I, the undersigned, the duly appointed City Clerk for the City of Auburn Hills, Oakland County, Michigan 
do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting 
of the Auburn Hills City Council held on the 19th day of March, 2012 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature on this 20th day of March, 2012. 

 

 

 ________________________________ 

 Terri Kowal, City Clerk 
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flood hazard categories and the owner has federally-related financing, then the lender is required by law to 
document the flood zone determination and require that the owner purchase flood insurance.    

 
 
 
Q: What does non-conforming mean?   
A: Mr. Cohen clarified the meaning of “legal nonconforming” status as when a use, lot, or structure was in 

compliance with the Zoning Ordinance at the time of creation, but is no longer permitted today.  Legal 
nonconforming lots, structures, or uses are allowed to continue until they are removed.  However, they are 
not permitted to be enlarged or expanded, which handcuffs an owner who may wish to improve the property.  
When dealing with buildings, the restriction purposely serves as a discouragement for the owner to invest 
because the intent is for it to go away.  It was noted that most Courts will allow a property owner to rebuild a 
legal nonconforming structure if damaged by fire or natural disaster. 

 
Q: Will a change in zoning affect taxes? 
A: Mr. Ouellette indicated that taxes are determined by the use on the property and would remain the same 

regarding of the zoning.   
 
Next Steps 
The meeting concluded with the majority of those attending in concurrence with the master plan changes 
proposed by the Planning Commission.   It was noted that no redevelopment has occurred in over the past 50 
years in the area and none was anticipated under the current master plan and zoning.   Several people 
indicated that they wanted their property reclassified from non-residential to residential use.  This would make 
their homes conforming to the zoning and allow them reinvest and refinance. 
 
One property owner on Cross Street did not wish to have her property zoned from industrial to residential.  The 
owner wanted to be a part of the redevelopment envisioned just east of her property.   The owner objected to 
the change and felt it would negatively affect her property values. 
 
Mr. Cohen explained the next steps in the process.   The draft master plan would be forwarded to the City 
Council for permission to distribute to adjacent communities and Oakland County.   The process will take about 
three months.  After receiving comments from the County, a public hearing would be held prior to final approval 
of the master plan.  Once the master plan is adopted, then zoning changes can proceed. 
 
Ms. Verbeke moved to send the draft master plan to the City Council for permission to distribute to 
adjacent communities and Oakland County. 
Supported by Mr. Hitchcock 
VOTE:    Yes:  Beidoun, Hitchcock, Ouellette, Pierce, Salerno, Verbeke 
                 No:  None 
             Motion Carried (6-0) 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The next scheduled meeting is March 27, 2012.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Steven J. Cohen      
Director of Community Development    
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"Not yet approved" 
 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
           March 12, 2012 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson Kay Sendegas called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:   Present. Ms. Sedegas, Ms. Doyle, Mr. Boelter, Mr. Torres 
    Absent. Mr. McFadden 
    Also Present. Deputy Director Manning; Lt. Hardesty 
           
 
LOCATION:  Grusnick Public Safety Building, 1899 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills MI 48326 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Ms. Doyle asked for discussion on the taking of minutes. She indicated that she had requested more 
detailed minutes from the January 24th meeting and while they are now available she would like to have 
an opportunity to read the minutes. Moved by Mr. Torres to postpone the approval of the minutes of the 
January 24, 2012 meeting. 
Supported by Ms. Doyle 
VOTE:  Yes: All 
  No: None 
       Motion carried (4-0) 
 
OLD BUSINESS - None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Fire Department purchase of 17 Air  Bottles – Self Contained Breathing Apparatus 
 

• DD Manning requested committee recommend to City Council the Fire Department 
purchase 17 Air Bottles at a cost of $17, 612 which is in the approved 2012 budget. 

• Ms. Doyle asked if there was a bidding process.  DD Manning responded that because 
the bottles are brand specific it was a sole source provider. 

Motion by Ms. Doyle: Move to recommend to City Council the purchase of 17 SCBA bottles by the 
Auburn Hills Fire Department at a cost of $17, 612.  
Supported by Mr. Torres. 
 

VOTE:  Yes: All 
  No: None 
       Motion carried (4-0) 
 

B. Police Department purchase of 33 rifle sound suppressors 
• Lt. Hardesty stated that the Police Department has had AR-15 rifles for 8 years and 

tactics and training have advanced to the point that officers are trained to shoot in close 
quarters including indoors with rifles. Rifles are extremely loud and there is a very bright 
flash from the round at night. Surefire suppressors were selected due to their accuracy 
and longevity and the fact that they attach easily to a rifle with an adaptor. The approved 
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2012 Police Budget included $39,000 for the suppressors. A request bids was placed on 
BidNet with Michigan Police Equipment coming in as the lowest bidder at $33,363.00.  

• Mr. Torress stated that the Sheriff’s Office has done business with Michigan Police 
Equipment and believes them to be a good vendor. Mr. Torres also stated that the 
Sheriff’s Department also recently bought suppressors. 

• Ms. Doyle asked why suppressors are being bought now if the Police Department has 
had rifles for 8 years. She also asked why a rifle might be used indoors. Lt. Hardesty 
explained that after several high profile incidents around the country many law 
enforcement agencies including Auburn Hills began using rifles which required little 
change from what was already in use by the military. Since that time training and tactics 
have developed along with the suppressor technology for law enforcement use. While 
every officer indoors in a situation may not have a rifle some would and it allows for 
flexibility in a combat situation. 

• Ms. Doyle asked what the difference between a suppressor and a silencer is. Lt. 
Hardesty explained that while a suppressor will make a rifle quieter and get rid of the 
bright “flash”, there still is the sound of a gun going off. It reduces the sound so that the 
gun can be fired without hearing protection and not cause hearing loss and officers can 
verbally communicate. Silencers are another level of sound suppression that is very 
expensive and somewhat rare. 

 
Motion by Mr. Torres to recommend to City Council acceptance of the bid of Michigan Police Equipment 
Company of Charlotte Michigan for the purchase of suppressors as needed by the Auburn Hills Police 
Department and authorize the City Manager to convey acceptance by purchase order. 
Support: Mr. Boelter  
VOTE:  Yes: All 
  No: None 
       Motion carried (4-0) 
 

• Ms. Sendegas asked why the Police Department didn’t use forfeiture money for the purchase. Lt. 
Hardesty explained that there was not enough forfeiture money to purchase the suppressors with 
it. This money is being used for other items like tracking devices. 

 
• Ms. Doyle asked what items are required to come before the Public Safety Advisory Committee. 

Lt. Hardesty stated that while there are no written requirements about what must come before the 
board, in general items that will be going before City Council are first being brought before the 
committee. An example being items that cost more than $10,000. 

 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENTS 
 
Fire Department – Provided by Deputy Director Manning 
 
The fire department has started a newsletter to distribute among all fire employees including the paid on 
call to let them know what is happening. Employees have provided positive feedback on the newsletter. 
This newsletter was also given to the committee.  
Staffing of outstations (1 & 3) and its effectiveness is being evaluated to see if it is providing the service 
as intended.  
Fire Fighter right to know law updates: The department including Deputy Chief Wyatt, inspectors and duty 
crews are making good progress towards making sure all businesses are complying with reporting their 
hazardous materials. Staff are working on plans as required by law based on the level of materials as 
required by law. Ms. Doyle asked if more inspections had been done than companies had responded to 
the survey. DD Manning said yes the staff had inspected some businesses even before a survey was 
completed by the business. 
Capital Purchases; Four manufacturers will be demonstrating Jaws cutting systems that are used to help 
extricate people from cars. The new equipment is necessary with the metals used in new vehicles. Ms. 
Doyle asked if the manufacturers had already tested the equipment. DD Manning responded that while 
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the manufacturer might provide their specifications they would like to see this equipment in use before 
making such a large purchase. 
AFG Grant; A grant was previously awarded for the purchase of some jaws equipment however with 3 
sets of Jaw equipment being in the 2012 regular budget grant money cannot be used as it would be 
considered “supplanting”. 
Operating Procedures; One item of note from the ICMA study was that policies and procedures of the fire 
department needed to be updated. Committees are working on updating these policies. The first which is 
the basic Rules & Regulations will be coming out next week. 
Ruggedized Tablets for EMS; The fire department is going to be a test site for using tablets to obtain 
patient information. The medics could then automatically download data to the hospital and for their own 
reports. 
Map Book updates; being done. Ms. Doyle asked if they used actual books or if they used GPS devices. 
DD Manning stated that GPS devices being activated and leaving a garage take time to orient themselves 
and that many times a truck might only have one person on it. 
Some leftover grant money from previously approved purchases was used to purchase shoulder mics for 
firefighters. 
Dispatch: A committee is working to put together some training to help update their training on what is 
needed from communications staff at fire incidents. An example is a P.A.R., which is a relatively new 
tactic in firefighting for accounting for personnel. 
Awards Banquet: With budget constraints has not had an awards banquet for the last couple years after a 
long history of having an annual awards dinner. While a major banquet is not budgeted for 2012 DD 
Manning will be looking to have some sort of recognition event to recognize the efforts of employees. 
Overtime Budget: Overtime expenditures are down 45 to 46 % from the same time period in 2011. Ms. 
Doyle asked if this was from more efficient scheduling. DD Manning responded that and instituting a 
formal approval process. 
Ms. Doyle stated that if she or the committee could in any way help support recognition for DD Manning 
to let her know. 
Mr. Boelter asked what level the cryogenic storage tanks at Chrysler are rated. DD Manning indicated 
they are in the Red category. Mr. Boelter stated that he is responsible for maintaining these tanks and if 
DD Manning needs assistance to let him know. 
 
Police Department – Lt. Hardesty 
 
Promotional Process: Lt. Hardesty stated that the written test for the sergeant and lieutenant promotional 
process has been set for Monday May 14th. The assessment center portion of the testing will be in early 
June but the exact date has not been set yet. The psychological portion for the top candidates will take 
place following the assessment center. The plan is for a promotional list to be established by July 1, 2012. 
Police Officer Hiring: Officer Nicholas West started today (March 12), another candidate has his 
psychological testing on March 14th, and a third candidate is in the police academy. Further oral boards 
are scheduled for April. 
I.T. Intern: The process of hiring an IT intern to take over tasks currently performed by sworn staff is 
moving along. The intern will work for 20 hours per week.A prospective intern is taking his physical and 
drug testing screening this week.  
Traffic Crashes: Each year the police department examines traffic crashes for the previous year to see if 
there are patterns, if particular enforcement or educational programs are needed. There were 5fatal 
accidents in 2012 but when examined closely no consistent factors found. Only one involved an 
intoxicated driver. One was a pedestrian on the freeway, one involved a a driver who fled the scene and 
died later and yet another a moped driver. The SOCCIT multi-agency crash investigation team did 
perform the investigations providing quality serious crash investigation while minimizing overtime 
expenditures and roadway closures. 
Training: Each year police officers spend nearly 40 hours in use of force training. During the past week 
officers used these skills in 3 different cases where subjects apparently under the influence of drugs 
and/or alcohol had mental breakdowns possibly approaching “excited delirium” which can cause death. 
Officers were able to bring each situation under control with minimal force and injury to officers or 
suspects. 
Volunteers: Volunteers are now covering the front desk 5 days a week from 9 AM to 6 PM. 
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Hiring: Ms. Sendegas asked if the hiring involved officers with previous experience. Lt. Hardesty indicated 
that Mr. West while not having police experience he did serve 4 years in the military. The next candidate 
has less than one year experience. Ms. Doyle stated that she would like to know the make-up of the 
agency such as male/female, and persons of color; does the police department track this information? Lt. 
Hardesty responded that the police department does not track this information, that asking someone, 
particularly a person of mixed heritage their race can be a difficult subject. Lt. Hardesty also reported that 
the police department has sought applicants with foreign language skills and is seeking to recruit quality 
candidates from colleges and universities. Ms. Doyle stated she would like more information on this. 
Ms. Doyle asked since the title of the department had been changed to emergency services should the 
title of the committee be changed. Ms. Sendegas stated that since the members served public safety 
interests then public safety committee is fine. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mr.Boelter moved to adjourn the meeting. 
Supported by Ms. Doyle 
VOTE:  Yes: All 
   No: None 
           Motion carried (4-0) 
 
The meeting was adjourned at    7:27 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Doreen E. Olko 
Director of Emergency Services/Chief of Police 
Recording Secretary   
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Not Yet Approved 
CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

       
March 27, 2012 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER:   Chairperson Ouellette called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:     Present.  Beidoun, Hitchcock (7:05 p.m.), Mitchell, Pierce, Ouellette, Spurlin, Verbeke 
 Absent.       Salerno 
 Also Present.     Director of Community Development Cohen, OHM Civil Engineer Juidici,   

Water Resources Coordinator Keenan, Mayor Pro Tem Hammond 
  Guests.     26 
 
LOCATION:   Auburn Hills Fire Station No. 1, 3483 Auburn Road, Auburn Hills MI 48326 
 
MINUTES  
 
Ms. Verbeke moved to approve the minutes of January 31, 2012 and March 1, 2012. 
Supported by Mr. Beidoun 
VOTE:    Yes:  Beidoun, Mitchell, Ouellette, Pierce, Spurlin, Verbeke 
                 No:  None 
             Motion Carried (6-0) 
 
PLANNING WORKSHOP  
 
Auburn Road Corridor Planning Study – West Side 
Mr. Ouellette welcomed the audience and thanked them for their participation.  He explained that the meeting 
was the Commission’s third with the neighborhood.  He outlined the study area as the property along Auburn 
Road at the western periphery of the Downtown core, between the Clinton River Bridge and I-75.  
 
Mr. Ouellette provided an overview of the planning process which started in March 2011.  He explained that a 
visioning meeting was held on November 28, 2011, which provided initial input on how the area should 
redevelop in the future.  A follow-up meeting was held on March 1, 2012 to review proposed changes to the 
master plan.  
 

C I T Y  O F  A U B U R N  H I L L S  
C I T Y  C O U N C I L  A G E N D A  
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A P R I L  2 ,  2 0 1 2  A G E N D A  I T E M  N O .   7 B .  
   P O L I C E  D E P A R T M E N T  
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Peter E. Auger, City Manager; and Doreen E. Olko, Chief of Police  

Submitted: April 2, 2012 

Subject: Motion: Approve a request from Battaglia’s LL, LLC to transfer ownership of an escrowed 2011      
Class C & SDM licensed business with Dance-Entertainment permit from Margaret E Taylor and 
Thomas B Taylor from 1302 W Huron, Waterford MI 48326, Waterford Twp, Oakland County. 

INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY 
 Battaglia’s LL, LLC has requested a Class C & SDM licensed business with a Dance-Entertainment Permit 

with a permit for extended hours on Sunday 10 am to noon for the purpose of food only.  Business to be 
located at the Santa Fe Mexican Restaurant (2655 Lapeer Rd). 

 
 The Class C license allows the establishment to sell beer, wine, liquor, and mixed spirit drinks for 

consumption on the licensed premises and the SDM license would allow the establishment to sell beer and 
wine for the consumption off the licensed premises. 

 
 The Santa Fe Mexican Restaurant has been operating in Auburn Hills since December of 2010 and the liquor 

license is being requested so the establishment can offer their patrons alcoholic beverages. 
 
 A Dance-Entertainment permit is being requested as the establishment would like to offer bands and/or a DJ 

on the weekends. 
 
 The establishment’s taxes and utility bills are paid up to date. 
 
 The Building Dept/Fire Dept advised that the establishment is current with inspections and it adheres to 

city/state codes. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

There exists no information that would constitute a reason to deny this request and we recommend approval. 
 
MOTION 

 Move to adopt the resolution approving the request from Battaglia’s LL, LLC to transfer ownership of 
an escrowed 2011 Class C & SDM licensed business with Dance-Entertainment permit from Margaret E 
Taylor and Thomas B Taylor from 1302 W Huron, Waterford MI 48326, Waterford Twp, Oakland County. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

I CONCUR: 
 PETER E. AUGER, CITY MANAGER 







 C I T Y  O F  A U B U R N  H I L L S  

C I T Y  C O U N C I L  A G E N D A  

April 5, 2011 - Walking Tour 

November 29, 2011 - Visioning Meeting 

A P R I L  2 ,  2 0 1 2  A G E N D A  I T E M  N O .   9 A .  

   C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  
To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Peter E. Auger, City Manager and Steven J. Cohen, Director of Community Development 

Submitted:  March 28, 2012 

Subject:  Motion – To Accept the Planning Commission’s Findings and Grant Permission to Distribute the Revised 
Draft Amendment to the Master Land Use Plan for the Auburn Road Corridor - West Side 

 
INTRODUCTION 
The Planning Commission has completed a draft amendment to the City’s Master Land Use Plan addressing property along 
both sides of Auburn Road, between I-75 and the Clinton River Bridge.  
 
The amendment is before the City Council per State law.  The Michigan Planning Enabling Act requires the City Council to 
review and receive the Planning Commission’s findings prior to allowing the draft amendment to be distributed to adjacent 
municipalities, Oakland County, SEMCOG, and utilities for comment.  Once comments are received from the outside 
agencies, the Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on the amendment prior to final approval. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Planning Commission has been studying the land use along Auburn Road since March 15, 2011.  The study was 
initiated to address a City Council objective which was “to create a vision for the property along Auburn Road at the 
periphery of the Downtown.”  The intent of the study was to focus on the periphery of the Downtown, since the HyettPalma 
report had recently been completed for the Downtown core.  
 
Getting to Know the Area 
Two walking tours were conducted to observe and obtain a better feel 
for the property along Auburn Road.  The east side of the Downtown, 
between Cherryland and Adams Road, was walked on April 5, 2011.  
The west side, between I-75 and the Clinton River Bridge, was walked 
on July 13, 2011. 
 
During the second walk, the Planning Commission met Russell Moore 
who resides on Auburn Road (near Cross Street in the western study 
area). He asked the Commission to consider rezoning his property, and 
others nearby, from industrial to residential.  He explained that good 
homes were located on these properties, but the owners could not 
improve or add onto them because they were non-conforming.   
Further, some homes were starting to fall into disrepair because people 
do not want to invest in non-conforming property.  He asked the 
Commission to look at the properties during their site walk.   
 
At the conclusion of the second walk, the Planning Commission decided 
to split the study into two separate planning processes and focus first 
on the western side to address the problem raised by Mr. Moore. 
 
Visioning Meeting 
The best way to describe planning in Auburn Hills is community 
oriented and neighborhood driven.  Respecting that tradition, a 
visioning meeting was held with the property owners on November 29, 
2011.  Staff provided a general overview of the zoning and historical 
development of the area with those attending.  The group was broken 
up into three teams.  After considerable discussion, each team 
presented its findings to the group. 
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March 1, 2012 – First Follow-Up Meeting 

 
The following is the recorded consensus of those who attended:  
1) Maintain the residential neighborhood near Cross Street and across the Auburn Road from that area. 

a) Open to townhomes and/or apartments on north side of Auburn Road to encourage a “walkable community” near 
the Downtown. 

b) Open to a mixed use idea in the location of the old Factory.   
c) Some would like the commercial area extended behind the residential neighborhood on Cross Street, instead of 

industrial. 
2) Extend the Downtown feel west of the Clinton River Bridge.  Residents feel that once you cross over the bridge you are 

leaving the City.   It was suggested that the City extend the street lights and/or landscaping or other characteristics of 
the Downtown into this area. 

3) Majority of the attending would like residential on the north side of the road, instead of office use.   Maintain homes 
around existing commercial businesses.   Little interest in encouraging low-traffic boutique type of businesses such as 
flower shops, professional offices, etc. to mix into the area. 

4) Desire to slow down traffic to enhance the residential feel of the neighborhood. 
5) Many like the three lanes of roadway along Auburn Road.  It gives them a safe zone when turning left into their 

driveways. 
6) Suggested that new residential units face the Clinton River to take advantage of the amenity. 
7) Need parking for guests that visit the residents who live on Auburn Road.  On-street parking was requested to be 

investigated to provide additional parking and traffic calming 
8) Possibly create a small park or gathering place by the Clinton River near the existing gas station. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Creating the Plan 
Based on the input collected at the visioning meeting, the Planning Commission proceeded to develop a master land use 
plan amendment, along with recommended zoning changes for the area.  The information was presented at a follow-up 
meeting with the neighborhood held on March 1, 2012.   A second follow-up meeting was held on March 27, 2012.  
 
The Planning Commission had two primary goals: 
 
1) Reclassify most parcels with homes on them 

from non-residential to residential use.  This 
would allow the zoning to be changed making 
these homes conforming with the Zoning 
Ordinance and allow property owners to 
reinvest and refinance.   
 

2) Draft “mixed use” development concepts to 
provide a vision and spur redevelopment of the 
properties located at the east end of the study 
area near the Clinton River Bridge  

 
The March 27th meeting concluded with those 
attending in concurrence with the amendment 
proposed by the Planning Commission.   It was 
noted that no redevelopment has occurred over the 
past 50 years on the commercially zoned home 
sites and none was anticipated.    

November 29, 2011 – Visioning Meeting 



Page 3 
 

South Side of Auburn Road 

North Side of Auburn Road 

Mixed Use Concept 

Draft Master Land Use Plan Amendment 

 
KEY ELEMENTS OF THE AMENDMENT 
1) Strengthen the existing residential neighborhood by amending the master land use plan to allow parcels with homes on 

them to be rezoned from commercial/industrial to residential. 
2) Create a mixed use designation near the Clinton River Bridge/Churchill area to allow flexibility in redevelopment.  

Concepts seek to tie the neighborhood into the Downtown with urban streetscape elements. 
3) Adjust plan to change commercial to industrial land use on the north side of Auburn Road, near I-75. 
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Gateway Feature 

Existing Zoning 

Proposed Zoning 
(Proceed After Master Land Use Plan Amendment is Completed) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE AMENDMENT 
The zoning change shown below will be proposed once the master plan amendment is approved.  No action is being 
requested from the City Council on the proposed zoning change at this time.    
 
Note:  We anticipate it will take about three months to complete the Oakland County review process.  After receiving 
comments from Oakland County, a public hearing would be held by the Planning Commission prior to final approval of the 
plan amendment.  Once the amendment is adopted, then the zoning changes below can proceed. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Entry feature designed as gateway 
into the Downtown area proposed 
near the US Post Office site. 
 
Concept came out of the visioning 
meeting where the residents stated 
they wanted to be a part of the 
Downtown community and not an 
afterthought. 
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March 27, 2012 – Second Follow-Up Meeting 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff has reviewed the master plan changes and potential zoning implementation with City Attorney Beckerleg.  Mr. 
Beckerleg is satisified that the proposed changes are acceptable from a legal standpoint.   This plan is an attempt to 
address concerns from multiple parties.  We feel it represents the desires of those who have participated in the planning 
process and will set the stage for renewal and reinvestment in the neighborhood. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSIOM RECOMMENDATION 
Moved to send the revised Auburn Road West - Master Plan to the City Council for permission to distribute to adjacent 
communities and Oakland County – March 27, 2012 (7-0 vote) 
 

 
 
MOTION 
“Move to accept the Planning Commission’s findings and grant staff permission to distribute the revised draft 
amendment to the City’s Master Land Use Plan for the Auburn Road Corridor – West Side.”  
 

 
 
 
 
 I CONCUR: 

 
 

 PETER E. AUGER, CITY MANAGER 
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Not Yet Approved 
CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

       
March 15, 2011 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER:   Chairperson Ouellette called the meeting to order at 6:37 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:     Present.  Beidoun, Hitchcock, Kittle, Mitchell, Pierce, Ouellette, Salerno, Spurlin, Verbeke 
 Absent.       None 
 Also Present.     Director of Community Development Cohen, OHM Civil Engineer Juidici, Water 

Resources Coordinator Keenan 
  Guests.     None 
 
LOCATION:   Robert W. Grusnick Public Safety Building (Fire/Police) - Community Room 
 1899 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills MI 48326 
 
PERSONS WISHING TO BE HEARD - None 
 
MINUTES - None 
 
PLANNING WORKSHOP DISCUSSION – Auburn Road Corridor Planning Study 
 
The Commission began brainstorming discussions on a vision for the property along Auburn Road at the 
periphery of the Downtown core.   The purpose of the workshop was for the group to become familiar with the 
study areas (e.g., existing conditions, constraints, and potential land use options) prior to meeting with property 
owners.  The intent of the discussion was not to focus on the core, since the HyettPalma study had recently 
been completed for that area.   
 
Staff presented concepts for two (2) study areas in detail.  The first area called “East Auburn Road” was from 
Juniper east to Adams Road.   The second area called “West Auburn Road” was from the Clinton River west to 
I-75.  All attending gathered around the maps and generally discussed the pros and cons of various land use 
options and ideas for future development.  No consensus was made in terms of land use policy direction for the 
study areas; however all felt the discussions were fruitful. 
 
The Commission plans to proceed with the following schedule: 
• Conduct a walking tour of the study areas on Tuesday, April 5th (weather permitting) 
• Visit various Downtowns in Michigan, with an intentional focus on observing what land uses are commonly 

found at the edges or periphery of those areas.  This will occur in the months of March and April.  
Commission members will team-up in groups of two (2) and visit up to ten (10) Downtown areas and report 
back with their findings. 

• Hold visioning meetings with property owners in May and/or June 
• Complete the study by August 
 
COMMUNICATIONS - None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The next scheduled meeting is March 29, 2011.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:32 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Steven J. Cohen      
Director of Community Development    



        
 

Not Yet Approved 
CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

       
April 5, 2011 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER:   Chairperson Ouellette called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:     Present.  Beidoun, Hitchcock (6:25 p.m.), Kittle, Mitchell, Pierce, Ouellette, Spurlin, Verbeke 
 Absent.       Salerno 
 Also Present.     Director of Community Development Cohen, OHM Civil Engineer Juidici, Water 

Resources Coordinator Keenan, Recreation Director Marzolf 
  Guests.     1 
 
LOCATION:   Auburn Hills Fire Station No. 1, 3483 Auburn Road, Auburn Hills MI 48326 
 
PERSONS WISHING TO BE HEARD - None 
 
MINUTES  
 
Mr. Pierce moved to approve the minutes of March 29, 2011. 
Supported by Mr. Spurlin 
VOTE:    Yes:  Beidoun, Kittle, Mitchell, Pierce, Ouellette, Spurlin, Verbeke 
                 No:  None 
             Motion Carried (7-0) 
 
PLANNING WORKSHOP – Auburn Road Corridor Planning Study (Walking Tour) 
 
The Commission conducted a walking tour to observe the property along Auburn Road at the eastern periphery of 
the Downtown core.   The tour focused on land between Cherryland and Adams Road.    
 
The route began at the Clinton River Trail, east of the Fire Station.  The Commission walked along the trail to 
Adams Road, south along Adams Road to Brimfield, up and down Brimfield, north along Adams Road to Auburn 
Road, and west along Auburn Road to Cherryland.   Throughout the walk, the group discussed topographical 
elevations, existing land uses, condition of the housing stock, pedestrian connections, and various ideas for 
redevelopment. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Planning Commission – April 5, 2011 
Page 2 of 2 
 
The Commission decided to conduct its next walking tour between Churchill and I-75 in early or mid-May. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS - None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The next scheduled meeting is April 20, 2011.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Steven J. Cohen      
Director of Community Development    



 

 

        
 

Excerpt 
CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

SPECIAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

       
July 13, 2011 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER:   Vice-Chairperson Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:     Present.  Hitchcock, Kittle, Mitchell, Pierce, Ouellette (arrived at 6:30 p.m.), Spurlin, 

Salerno, Verbeke 
 Absent.       Beidoun 
 Also Present.     Director of Community Development Cohen, OHM Civil Engineer Juidici, Water 

Resources Coordinator Keenan, TIFA Chairperson Bennett 
  Guests.     1 
 
LOCATION:   Auburn Hills Fire Station No. 1, 3483 Auburn Road, Auburn Hills MI 48326 
 
PERSONS WISHING TO BE HEARD  
 
Mr. Russell Moore, 3052 Auburn Road, asked the Commission to consider rezoning his property and others 
nearby from industrial to residential.   He explained that good homes are located on these properties, but 
property owners cannot improve or add onto them because they are non-conforming.   Further, some homes are 
starting to fall into disrepair because people do not want to invest in non-conforming property.  He asked the 
Commission to look at the properties during their site walk. 
 
PLANNING WORKSHOP – Auburn Road Corridor Planning Study (Walking Tour) 
 
The Commission conducted a walking tour to observe the property along Auburn Road at the western periphery 
of the Downtown core.   The tour focused on land between Churchill and I-75.    
 
Throughout the walk, the group looked at the topographical elevations of property, existing land uses, condition 
of the housing stock, pedestrian connections and problem areas, and various ideas for redevelopment. 
 
The Commission saw several opportunities where property zoned for non-residential use could be changed to 
residential to preserve and improve existing strips of residential housing stock. 
 
The group’s next step is to hold neighborhood meetings with the property owners along the roadway. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The next scheduled meeting is August 30, 2011.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Steven J. Cohen      
Director of Community Development    



        
 

 
CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

       
November 29, 2011 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER:   Chairperson Ouellette called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:     Present.  Beidoun, Hitchcock, Mitchell, Pierce, Ouellette, Salerno  
 Absent.       Kittle, Spurlin, Verbeke 
 Also Present.     Director of Community Development Cohen, OHM Civil Engineer Juidici, Water 

Resources Coordinator Keenan 
  Guests.     20 
 
LOCATION:   Auburn Hills Fire Station No. 1, 3483 Auburn Road, Auburn Hills MI 48326 
 

Auburn Road Corridor Planning Study – West Side 
PLANNING WORKSHOP  

The Commission conducted a visioning meeting with interested parties who own or occupy property along 
Auburn Road at the western periphery of the Downtown core, between Squirrel Road and I-75.   Mr. Ouellette 
and Mr. Cohen provided a general overview of the zoning and historical development of the area with those 
attending.   The group was broken up into three teams.  Each team was requested to provide input of the future 
development of the area.  After considerable discussion, each team presented their findings to the group. 
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• Maintain the residential neighborhood near Cross Street and across the Auburn Road from that area (shown 
in yellow).   

General Comments from Participants  

o Open to townhomes and/or apartments on north side of Auburn Road to encourage a walkable 
community near the Downtown. 

o Open to a mixed use idea in the location of the old Factory (shown in aqua).  The existing property 
owner is open to all suggestions. 

o Some would like the commercial area (shown in red) extended behind the residential neighborhood on 
Cross Street, instead of industrial. 

• Extend the Downtown feel west of the Clinton River Bridge.  Residents feel that once you cross over the 
bridge you are leaving the City.   It was suggested that the City extend the street lights and/or landscaping 
or other characteristics of the Downtown in to this area. 

• Majority of the attending would like residential on the north side of the road, instead of office use (shown in 
blue).   Maintain homes around existing commercial businesses.   Little interest in encouraging low-traffic 
boutique type of businesses such as flower shops, professional offices, etc. to mix into the area. 

• Desire to slow down traffic to enhance the residential feel of the neighborhood. 
• Many like the three lanes of roadway along Auburn Road.  It gives them a safe zone when turning into their 

driveways. 
• Suggested that new residential units face the Clinton River to take advantage of the amenity. 
• Need parking for guests that visit the residential who live on Auburn Road.  On-street parking was requested 

to be investigated to provide additional parking and traffic calming 
• Possibly create a small park or gathering place by the Clinton River near the existing gas station. 
 
 
 

Discussion Option Presented to the Three Teams 
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ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The next scheduled meeting is December 13, 2011.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Steven J. Cohen      
Director of Community Development    



        
 
 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
       

March 1, 2012 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER:   Chairperson Ouellette called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:     Present.  Beidoun, Hitchcock, Pierce, Ouellette, Salerno, Verbeke 
 Absent.       Mitchell, Spurlin 
 Also Present.     Director of Community Development Cohen, OHM Civil Engineer Juidici,   

Water Resources Coordinator Keenan 
  Guests.     21 
 
LOCATION:   Auburn Hills Fire Station No. 1, 3483 Auburn Road, Auburn Hills MI 48326 
 

Auburn Road Corridor Planning Study – West Side 
PLANNING WORKSHOP  

Mr. Ouellette welcomed the audience.  He explained that the meeting was the Commission’s second with 
interested parties who own or occupy property along Auburn Road at the western periphery of the Downtown 
core, between the Clinton River Bridge and I-75.  A visioning meeting was held on November 28, 2011, which 
provided initial input on how the area should redevelop in the future. 
 
Mr. Cohen provided a general overview of the zoning and historical development of the area. He described how 
input provided at the previous meeting helped shape the draft master plan map and rezoning proposals posted 
on the wall. 

 
Mr. Cohen reviewed the following comments received at the previous meeting from those who attended: 
• Maintain the residential neighborhood near Cross Street and across the Auburn Road from that area.  

o Open to townhomes and/or apartments on north side of Auburn Road to encourage a walkable 
community near the Downtown. 

o Open to a mixed use idea in the location of the old factory.   
• Extend the Downtown feel west of the Clinton River Bridge.  Residents feel that once you cross over the 

bridge you are leaving the City.   It was suggested that the City extend the street lights and/or landscaping 
or other characteristics of the Downtown in to this area. 

• The north side of the Auburn Road should be residential, instead of office or commercial use.  Maintain 
homes around existing commercial businesses.   Little interest in encouraging low-traffic boutique type of 
businesses such as flower shops, professional offices, etc. to mix into the area. 

• Several desired to slow down traffic to enhance the residential feel of the neighborhood. 
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• Many like the three lanes of roadway along Auburn Road.  It gives them a safe zone when turning left into 

their driveways. 
• Need parking for guests that visit the residential who live on Auburn Road.  On-street parking was requested 

to be investigated to provide additional parking and traffic calming. 
 
Mr. Cohen reviewed the draft master plan below, which was the result of the visioning meeting:  

 
 
Mr. Juidici introduced a few “mixed use” development concepts created by the City to provide a vision and spur 
redevelopment.  The properties are located at the east end of the study area near the Clinton River Bridge.   
The concepts are intended to show redevelopment possibilities from the land. 
 
The following discussion resulted from questions from the audience: 
 
Q: What is mixed use?
A: Mr. Juidici explained that the “mixed use” master plan category is intended to be flexible and open to allow a 

variety of land uses (residential, commercial, office, etc.) on a particular site.  The master plan would be 
implemented via specific proposals called Planned Unit Developments, which are submitted to the City for 
approval on a project by project basis. 

   

 
Q: Are there any historic buildings in the study area?
A: Mr. Cohen stated there are no historic districts in the City of Auburn Hills.  Staff is not aware of any buildings 

of historic nature in the study area. 

    

 
Q. 
A: Mr. Keenan and Mr. Juidici explained that the National Flood Insurance Program creates a map which 

represents the official depiction of the flood hazards in the City of Auburn Hills.  Each flood zone describes 
the risk of a 100-year flood from low to high.  If a structure is confirmed to be located in certain high-risk 
flood hazard categories and the owner has federally-related financing, then the lender is required by law to 
document the flood zone determination and require that the owner purchase flood insurance.    

How does the floodplain affect property? 
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Q: What does non-conforming mean?
A: Mr. Cohen clarified the meaning of “legal nonconforming” status as when a use, lot, or structure was in 

compliance with the Zoning Ordinance at the time of creation, but is no longer permitted today.  Legal 
nonconforming lots, structures, or uses are allowed to continue until they are removed.  However, they are 
not permitted to be enlarged or expanded, which handcuffs an owner who may wish to improve the property.  
When dealing with buildings, the restriction purposely serves as a discouragement for the owner to invest 
because the intent is for it to go away.  It was noted that most Courts will allow a property owner to rebuild a 
legal nonconforming structure if damaged by fire or natural disaster. 

   

 
Q: 
A: Mr. Ouellette indicated that taxes are determined by the use on the property and would remain the same 

regarding of the zoning.   

Will a change in zoning affect taxes? 

 

The meeting concluded with the majority of those attending in concurrence with the master plan changes 
proposed by the Planning Commission.   It was noted that no redevelopment has occurred in over the past 50 
years in the area and none was anticipated under the current master plan and zoning.   Several people 
indicated that they wanted their property reclassified from non-residential to residential use.  This would make 
their homes conforming to the zoning and allow them reinvest and refinance. 

Next Steps 

 
One property owner on Cross Street did not wish to have her property zoned from industrial to residential.  The 
owner wanted to be a part of the redevelopment envisioned just east of her property.   The owner objected to 
the change and felt it would negatively affect her property values. 
 
Mr. Cohen explained the next steps in the process.   The draft master plan would be forwarded to the City 
Council for permission to distribute to adjacent communities and Oakland County.   The process will take about 
three months.  After receiving comments from the County, a public hearing would be held prior to final approval 
of the master plan.  Once the master plan is adopted, then zoning changes can proceed. 
 
Ms. Verbeke moved to send the draft master plan to the City Council for permission to distribute to 
adjacent communities and Oakland County. 
Supported by Mr. Hitchcock 
VOTE:    Yes:  Beidoun, Hitchcock, Ouellette, Pierce, Salerno, Verbeke 
                 No:  None 
             Motion Carried (6-0) 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The next scheduled meeting is March 27, 2012.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Steven J. Cohen      
Director of Community Development    
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Not Yet Approved 
CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

       
March 27, 2012 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER:   Chairperson Ouellette called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:     Present.  Beidoun, Hitchcock (7:05 p.m.), Mitchell, Pierce, Ouellette, Spurlin, Verbeke 
 Absent.       Salerno 
 Also Present.     Director of Community Development Cohen, OHM Civil Engineer Juidici,   

Water Resources Coordinator Keenan, Mayor Pro Tem Hammond 
  Guests.     26 
 
LOCATION:   Auburn Hills Fire Station No. 1, 3483 Auburn Road, Auburn Hills MI 48326 
 
MINUTES  
 
Ms. Verbeke moved to approve the minutes of January 31, 2012 and March 1, 2012. 
Supported by Mr. Beidoun 
VOTE:    Yes:  Beidoun, Mitchell, Ouellette, Pierce, Spurlin, Verbeke 
                 No:  None 
             Motion Carried (6-0) 
 
PLANNING WORKSHOP  
 
Auburn Road Corridor Planning Study – West Side 
Mr. Ouellette welcomed the audience and thanked them for their participation.  He explained that the meeting 
was the Commission’s third with the neighborhood.  He outlined the study area as the property along Auburn 
Road at the western periphery of the Downtown core, between the Clinton River Bridge and I-75.  
 
Mr. Ouellette provided an overview of the planning process which started in March 2011.  He explained that a 
visioning meeting was held on November 28, 2011, which provided initial input on how the area should 
redevelop in the future.  A follow-up meeting was held on March 1, 2012 to review proposed changes to the 
master plan.  
 

C I T Y  O F  A U B U R N  H I L L S  
C I T Y  C O U N C I L  A G E N D A  
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C I T Y  O F  A U B U R N  H I L L S  

C I T Y  C O U N C I L  A G E N D A  

A P R I L  2 ,  2 0 1 2  A G E N D A  I T E M  N O .   9 B .  

    
To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Peter E. Auger, City Manager;  

Submitted:  March 30, 2012  

Subject:        Motion to Approve the Michigan Water/ Wastewater Agency Response Network (MIWARN) 
                     Mutual Aid Agreement   

 

INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY 

Over the past several months the Department of Public Service has entered into several mutual aid agreements. 
These agreements not only position the City to be better prepared in the event of a natural or manmade disaster, 
but also provide an ideal collaboration between communities for sharing equipment and labor. As a direct result, 
member communities can operate leaner, more fiscally responsible departments.  

This latest agreement operates the same as previous agreements except for one unique difference. The 
previously approved mutual aid agreements specifically involve communities within the Metro-Detroit area.  The 
benefit of the MIWARN agreement is that it is a state-wide agreement that will allow the City to request assistance 
from any membership agency throughout Michigan. If a large scale disaster affected Auburn Hills it would, in all 
likelihood, affect our neighboring communities in the Metro-Detroit area; possibly making our current agreements 
ineffective. This is where the MIWARN Mutual Aid agreement would apply. This agreement would allow the City 
to request assistance from outside the affected area.  

  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The City of Auburn Hills Department of Public Services recommends approving membership into the 
Michigan Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network.  
 

MOTION 
Move to approve the City of Auburn Hills Department of Public Service membership into the 
Michigan Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network Mutual Aid Authority.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

I CONCUR:  
 PETER E. AUGER, CITY MANAGER 
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April 2, 2012 Meeting Agenda Item No.  9c 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Department of Public Services 

From:  Peter E. Auger, City Manager, and Don Grice, Deputy Director DPS 

Submitted:  March 29, 2012 

Subject:        Motion: 2012-2014 Lawn and Ornamental Bed Maintenance Bid 

INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY 
On Thursday, March 1, 2012, at 3:00 p.m. bids were opened for the 2012-2014 Lawn and Ornamental Bed 
Maintenance Contract. This Service Contract covers the grass and ornamental beds in the boulevards and right-of-
ways throughout the City. Notice was placed on the MITN system and two hundred sixty three (263) “Invitations to 
Bid” were sent to vendors. Ten (10) bids were received. U.S. Lawns of Southgate, MI was the lowest bidder at a price 
of $1,277.00 per occurrence. This per-occurrence cost is a savings of $343.00 from last year’s price. Based on a 
twenty four (24) cut season, this new contract would present a savings of $8,232.00 over last year’s cost.  
 
Following are the four lowest bids: 

 
BIDDER LOCATION TOTAL BID AMOUNT 

U.S. Lawns 15040 Dumay Road 
Southgate, MI 48195 

$1,277.00 per occurrence 

Redigan Outdoor Services 4179 Lanco Ct.  
Waterford, MI 48329 

$1,810.00 per occurrence 

Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc. 43630 Utica Rd. 
Sterling Heights, MI 48314 

$1,934.00 per occurrence 

Garden Solutions & Maintenance 39391 Lake Shore Dr.  
Harrison Twp., MI 48045 

$1,960.00 per occurrence 

 
On March 9, 2012, Department of Public Service staff conducted an onsite visit at the U.S. Lawns facility to inspect 
vehicles and equipment that will be used for City services. It was determined that the facility and equipment owned by 
U.S. Lawns meets or exceeds requirements. Considering this information along with over 10 years of experience in 
landscape maintenance and high-quality reports from references, the DPS staff determined that U.S. Lawns is 
capable of fulfilling the contract requirements.     
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Based on the satisfactory results of the on-site visit, equipment inspection and positive references, the Department of 
Public Services recommends that the bid for the 2012-2014 Lawn and Ornamental Bed Maintenance Contract be 
awarded to U.S. Lawns of Southgate, MI.  
 
 

MOTION 
 

Move to award the 2012-2014 Lawn and Ornamental Bed Maintenance Bid to: U.S. Lawns, 15040 Dumay, 
Southgate, MI 48195. 

I CONCUR: 

 
 

9 
 

 PETER E. AUGER, CITY MANAGER 
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April 2, 2012 Meeting      Agenda Item No. 9d.  

 
To: Mayor and City Council Department of Public Service 

From: Peter E. Auger, City Manager, and Diane Skinner, Fleet Manager 

Submitted: March 28, 2012 

Subject: Motion to Approve: The Purchase a 2012 Aerial Lift Truck  

INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY 
 
The City of Auburn Hills Fleet Division owns a 1995 GMC HD3500 aerial truck and a 2001 Dodge Ram Van 
which are both due for replacement per the vehicle replacement model.  Even though the Ram Van  
fulfilled its useful function for DPS purposes, it has been refurbished sufficiently to be given to the City Golf 
Course for use in their catering operation. The GMC lift truck was offered as a trade in on the newly 
proposed aerial truck.  The DPS fleet will be reduced by one vehicle with this purchase.  The proposed 
aerial truck will serve a dual purpose for the City electrician.  He will be able to use this one vehicle for both 
his every day electrical work and for the street lights, parking lot lights, building maintenance, etc. 
 
The Fleet Division solicited for bids on a new, 2012 Aerial Lift Truck. One Hundred (100) vendors were sent 
specifications and invitations to bid.  On March 20, 2012, the bid opening was held in the Clerk’s office and 
ten (10) bids were received.  Of the 10, three (3) bids did not meet specs. The bids were carefully 
examined and the low bid that met specifications was chosen.  Following are the results: 

Aerial Lift Truck 
        Bid Opening: March 20, 2012 2:00 p.m. 

      Attended By: Diane Skinner Terri Kowal 
      

   
  

     

COMPANY NAME ADDRESS TOTAL TRADE-IN 
TOTAL  
 ALT 1 

TRADE-IN 
 ALT 1 

TOTAL 
 ALT 2 

TRADE-IN 
 ALT 2 

 
Equipment 
Technology 

341 N.W. 122nd Street 
Oklahoma City, OK 73114 

Did not meet specs 
 

$80,841.01 $2,500.00         

 
Tri-County Internat'l 
Trucks 

5701 Wyoming Ave. 
Dearborn, MI 48126 

Did not meet specs 
$90,743.00 n/a         

 

Gorno Bros Ford 
22025 Allen Road 
Woodhaven MI 48183 $81,689.00 $4,000.00         

 

Altec Industries, Inc. 
200 Altec Drive 
Elizabethtown, KY 42701 $95,359.00 $2,500.00 $97,859.00 $2,500.00 $86,289.00 $2,500.00   

Cannon Truck Equip 

51761 Danview Technology 
Ct. 
 Shelby Twp., MI 48315 $80,978.00 $4,000.00         

 

Gorno Ford 
2111 Allen Road Woodhaven, 
MI 48183 

Did not meet specs 
$80,138.00 $4,000.00 $81,339.00 $4,000.00     

 

VIP Truck Center 
39300 Schoolcraft Livonia, MI 
48150 $83,400.00 $2,500.00         
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The 2012 Capital Outlay budget has sufficient funds to cover the purchase of this piece of equipment.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Therefore, the Department of Public Service Fleet Division and Parks & Grounds Division recommend the 
purchase of a 2012 Aerial Lift Truck replacement be awarded to Cannon Truck Equipment, 51761 Danview 
Technology Court, Shelby Twp.,   MI  48315 at a total cost of $76,978.00.  
 

MOTION 
Move to approve the purchase of a 2012 Aerial Lift Truck replacement be awarded to Cannon Truck 
Equipment, 51761 Danview Technology Court, Shelby Twp.,   MI  48315 at a total cost of $76,978.00. 
 

I CONCUR:  
 PETER AUGER, CITY MANAGER 
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Monthly Report –February 2012 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Part A incidents are up 3.11% compared to February of 2011.  Part B Incidents are up 59.74% in February 
compared to one year ago. This increase is due to a required change in coding of certain types of warrant 
entries. Traffic crashes show an increase of 4.96% in comparison to a year ago.   Traffic citations are up 
68.28% total for this year.  Specific crimes are listed in the charts on the back page of this report.  We 
continually strategize our responses and make best use of the tools and personnel we have to produce the 
best possible outcomes.   
 
During the month of February, the Police Department as a whole had 296 hours of training.  
 
The training is broken down by category:  
 
• 76 hours of AED/CPR re-certification 
• 96 hours of MACP Conference 
• 16 hours of Crime Prevention on Patrol 
• 32 hours of Juvenile Officer training 
• 48 hours of Colt Armorer School 
• 12 hours of LEIN training 
• 64 hours of MSU Staff & Command 

 
 
The training is spread out among our entire staff with the bulk being in AED/CPR re-certification.  Use of 
Force instructors also attended the Colt Armorer re-certification.  The Communication division attended 
LEIN Packing the Records training, which keeps them up to date on the current laws/procedures on LEIN.   
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     TECHNICAL SERVICES DIVISION 

  
Parking Violations 
 
Officers from Auburn Hills issued 8 parking violations, totaling $160.00 in fines, during the 
month of February.  Oakland Community College Officers issued 8 parking violations 
totaling $160 in fines.    

 
There were no sex offender address verifications in the month of February.  
 
Blue Card Survey 
 
In an effort to gauge the services our personnel have provided, the Department sends out 100 survey 
cards to citizens with whom we have had contact with during the previous month.  This post card size 
survey, commonly referred to as a “Blue Card” for its color, asks six questions about the quality of service 
the citizen received.  During the month of February we received 17 cards back, none of which expressed 
dissatisfaction with the service provided.     
 
The “blue cards” also provide a space for the respondents to make comments about the service they 
received.  The following are some of the comments from the blue cards: 
 

“Officers were very courteous and considerate”  Officer Skomski 
“Everything was handled with concern and in excellence”  Officer Malone 
“The Officer was very courteous and Polite”  Officer M. Miller 
“They opened my car in seconds”  Officer Hollenbeck 
“Officer arrived quickly and got me back into my car”  Officer VanLandeghem 
“Officer Rice is wonderful, so is your entire department” 
“Officer was very courteous and professional”   Officer Starrs 
“The department was very professional and helpful” Officer Prachar 
 
 

 
Firearms Registrations 
 
Auburn Hills’ Records clerks issued 68 License to Purchase gun permits.   
 
 
 
Fingerprinting 
 
During the month of February, Records personnel fingerprinted 13 people: 9 for licenses of various types, 
2 for immigration, and 2 miscellaneous. 
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 Communications  

 
Communications is the primary contact point for incoming calls to the Department. The following statistics 
show how many calls were handled by our Police Service Officers during the month of February 2012:  
 

 
 
Total incoming calls: 4,876 
 
Total outgoing calls:  1,635 
 
Total calls:                  6,511 
 
Of the 4,876 total phone calls received by Communications, 34 % or 1,679 calls were received on 911 lines.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Calls Per Shift 

Days 

Afternoons 

Midnights 

Total Incidents 
Dispatched 

Police -1228 

Fire-66 

EMS-142 
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 OPERATIONS DIVISION 
 
NOTEWORTHY CASES 
 
 On February 5, 2012 at 8:34 a.m., Officer Iacobelli was dispatched to an address in our city for a 
runaway child.  An 11 year old child was last seen at 4:00 a.m. by her grandmother and discovered missing 
at the dispatched time.    An investigation revealed that the child was abducted by the non-custodial 
father.  Through a collaborative effort between several different agencies, the 11 year old was recovered 
in the City of Detroit and the non-custodial father was charged parental kidnapping. 
 
 On February 10, 2012 at 9:36 p.m., Officer Janczarek was dispatched to Crittenton Hospital to 
meet the victim of an assault.  The investigation revealed that an ex-boyfriend came into the victim’s place 
of employment and assaulted her with a knife.  The suspect would later forcibly remove the victim from 
her employment and drag her to his vehicle.  The suspect later released the victim.   Officers from the 
afternoon and midnight shifts worked together locating the suspect and took him into custody.  The 
suspect was charged with Felonious Assault/Domestic Violence second offense. 
 
 On February 10, 2012 at 8:07 p.m., Officer Eftink was dispatched to St. Joseph Hospital for a 
gunshot victim.  Officer Eftink spoke to the resident of Auburn Hills who indicated that while showing his 
wife how to load the firearm, the gun discharged into his hand.  The apartment was searched.  It was 
determined that the projectile stayed in the subject’s hand and did not cause any further damage.  This 
case was turned over to Investigations for follow up. 
 
 On February 10, 2012 at 7:42 p.m., Officer M. Miller was conducting stationary radar on 
Shimmons Road.   He observed a vehicle traveling 60mph in a 25mph posted zone.  Officer M. Miller 
attempted to stop the vehicle, but the driver would not stop.  A short pursuit ensued, where the vehicle 
drove into the backyard of a residence.  The suspect was caught and charged with operating while 
intoxicated and fleeing and eluding. 
 
 On February 13, 2012 at 4:52 a.m., Officer Raskin conducted a traffic stop on a motor vehicle for a 
license plate violation.   While speaking to the passenger, the passenger regurgitated a bag of Vicodin pills 
that she was trying to swallow.  Both the driver and passenger were arrested for synthetic drugs.   
 

On February 23, 2012 at 8:11 p.m., officers from the afternoon shift were dispatched to an 
apartment complex on Olden Oak Lane. A resident reported hearing a gun shot from the below apartment 
and noticed a hole in his floor.  Officers entered the downstairs apartment, which was found to be empty.  
Upon investigating the complaint, officers located the resident of the apartment.  The resident indicated 
upon cleaning his gun it discharged.  The resident was arrested for unlawful discharge of a firearm. 
 

On February 26th, 2012, officers were dispatched to Stay Bridge Hotel, 2050 Featherstone Road, 
on a subject who was possibly at the hotel and was suicidal.    Officers went to the room with a room key 
provided by the front desk.   The interior room lock latch was on the door.  Officer Skomski used his knife 
to unlock the door latch.   As Officer Skomski entered the bathroom, he looked around the door to see a 
female with a knife to her stomach.  The female pushed the knife into her stomach, where Officer Skomski 
grabbed the knife and placed her into the bathtub.  The female was dragged out of the bathroom where 
fire personnel responded and transported her to the hospital.  The female had a suicide note written. 
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On February 28th, Officer Raskin conducted a traffic stop at the Opdyke/University McDonald’s for 
a defective tail light.  Officer Raskin asked the driver for consent to search the vehicle.  Consent was given, 
where Officer Raskin located 2 weapons in the passenger rear seat pouch.  One of the weapons was a 
Glock .40 caliber handgun, which had been previously reported as stolen in July of 2011 out of our city.   
The second weapon was a Ruger .22 caliber handgun that had a round chambered.  This weapon is 
believed to be stolen, pending notification of the owner.   Two subjects were arrested.  The secondary 
occupant had been sitting in the back seat next to the weapons during the time of the traffic stop. 
 
 

DISTRICT IV / RETAIL DISTRICT  

 
 

February 2012 
    

Officers Open Cases Warr. Approved Warr. Denied Petitions Tickets 

Rometty 5 3 0 3 3 

Mahon 3 2 0 0 1 

Brown 3 3 1 3 2 

Total 11 8 1 6 6 

      

Officers Other Crimes Arrests Assigned Closed 
  

Rometty 10 7 2 
  

Mahon 0 2 1 
  

Brown 2 8 0 
  

Total 12 17 3 
  

 
 
On Wednesday, February 29, 2012, officers responded to Target for a Retail Fraud that had just 

occurred. The suspect was struggling with Target Loss Prevention Officers.   The suspect, a 32 year old 
Waterford man, selected two flat screen televisions and placed them into a cart.  The suspect then 
attempted to steal the cart full of televisions by exiting through a fire exit at the rear of the store.  A 22 
year old Waterford woman was waiting in a getaway car in the alley behind the store.  Officer Rometty 
and Officer Brown were able to apprehend both suspects without incident. Information provided by 
Target Loss Prevention and interviews with the suspect  by officers led to these two suspects being 
responsible for numerous Retail Frauds in Oakland and Macomb Counties. 

 
On Saturday, February 25, 2012, Officers were notified by Great Lakes Security that a 15 year old 

male listed as a missing endangered runaway out of Detroit had posted on Facebook that he was going to 
be at Great Lakes Crossing mall.  The runaway was spotted near one of the entrances.  Officers 
approached the runaway and began speaking with him.  The runaway verbally identified himself with a 
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name other than his own.  When officers confronted him on his true identity the teen began to run toward 
the exit doors.  The officers gave chase and were able apprehend the teen.  One officer was slightly 
injured. 

 
On Friday, February 17, 2012, officers responded to a retail fraud at a jewelry store inside Great 

Lakes Crossing Mall where an $18,000 Rolex Watch was stolen.  The clerk reported that she was showing 
the suspect watches. The suspect continued to pick out more expensive watches until he said he wanted 
to see the Rolex watch.  The suspect fled after the clerk placed the watch on his wrist.  The suspect is 
described as a black male in his 20’s.  Officers reviewed video from the store and the mall to find that the 
suspect had taken the watch and was with at least two other subjects.  Photos obtained from the security 
cameras of the suspects were put into an intelligence bulletin and distributed to other police 
departments. 12-2179 

 
 

Directed Patrol   
 
On February 1, 2012 Officer Becker and B. Miller reviewed video at a business adjacent to Rider 

Truck on Lapeer Road (PC Treasures) to see if any suspect vehicle was capture for the recent semi-truck 
tire thefts. A delivery of tires for the trucks was made and the tires were being stored in an old trailer in 
the lot.  Over the night an older model truck with a unique cap was seen pulling up directly to the storage 
trailer and then leaving a short time later.  When the truck is leaving it appears that there are tires in the 
back of it.  A still image was developed from the video and placed into an intelligence information bulletin 
which was distributed to the department and area departments. The images were placed on the 
department’s Facebook page.  A few tips on similar type trucks and caps were given, none of which were 
the suspect vehicle.  Officer Becker and Officer B. Miller checked tire distribution centers for the suspect 
truck.   The case remains under investigation and the information has been shared with the Michigan State 
Police special crimes unit. 

 
Officers from DPU assisted with road coverage during the foul weather days and training days in 

February.  They completed 3 felony warrants arrests and attempted several other warrant arrests.   
 
Officers spent several days attempting to locate a material witness in a domestic violence case.  

The judge issued the warrant after the witness/victim transported the suspect to and from the court, but 
disregarded her subpoena.   

 
 

Investigations  

 
Detective Cases Start 

of Month 
Open 
Cases     
Assigned 

Warrants 
Felony / Misd. 

In Custody 
Warrants 

Juvenile 
Petition 

Youth   
Assist. 

Pros. 
Denied 

Pending 
Cases 

Inactive Closed Active 
Cases 
End of 
Month 

Edwards 19 10 2/0 3/1 0 0 2 4 4 1 11 

Tuski 13 21 4/6 0 0 0 1 9 7 11 8 

Damiani 20 21 2/2 4 0 0 4 8 6 9 6 

Thomas 10 26 1/1 0 1 0 5 10 5 10 11 
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School Resource Officer Report 
 

On February 6th, Officer Stubbs assisted the detective bureau with an incident of a missing 11 year 
old from Auburn Hills by doing follow-up at the child’s school.  On February 13th, Officer Stubbs conducted 
a code red lock-down drill at the Avondale Montessori Preschool.  After the completion of the lock-down 
drill, Officer Stubbs went over his observations with the school’s administration.  The school’s 
administration was advised of the importance of making sure teachers are locking their classroom door 
during a lock-down.    

On February 17th, Officer Stubbs gave a Juvenile Justice presentation to a group of 6th grade 
students.  The presentation provided the students with information about the juvenile justice system and 
the laws which pertain to them.   

 
On February 22nd, Officer Stubbs attended Juvenile Officer Training held at the Oakland County 

Complex in Pontiac.  The training focused on the Oakland County Juvenile Justice System.   
 
On February 27th, Officer Stubbs gave a Law Enforcement Career presentation to a group of 

students at the Avondale Academy.  The presentation provided the students with information regarding a 
career in law enforcement; including requirements, the ways to enter a basic police academy, and how to 
become a certified police officer in the state of Michigan.   

 
During the month of February, Officer Stubbs assisted other department personnel with doing 

follow-up on cases involving students who attend schools within the City of Auburn Hills.  Officer Stubbs 
assisted the Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office by doing follow-up on a case involving a student at the 
Avondale High School. 

 
 
 
.   
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PART A INCIDENTS 
  2012 Feb. 2011 Feb. 2012 2011 Y.T.D. %  change 

INCIDENT TYPE     Y.T.D.  Y.T.D. 2012/2011 
Murder 0 0 0 0 0.00% 
Forcible Sexual Offenses 0 1 0 1 -100.00% 
Robbery 0 1 0 3 -300.00% 
Assault Offenses 25 30 53 70 -24.29% 
Burglary 5 8 7 15 -53.33% 
Larceny 34 37 84 76 10.53% 
Motor Vehicle Thefts 1 2 2 5 -60.00% 
Arson 0 1 0 1 -100.00% 
Kidnapping / Abduction 2 0 2 0 200.00% 
Forgery / Counterfeiting  1 1 5 3 66.67% 
Fraud 9 6 20 17 17.65% 
Embezzlement  Bribery / Extortion 2 0 3 1 200.00% 
Stolen Property 2 0 3 0 300.00% 
Damage to Property 6 5 13 11 18.18% 
Weapon Offenses 4 2 6 3 100.00% 
Drugs / Narcotic Violations 20 10 34 19 78.95% 

TOTAL PART "A" INCIDENTS 111 104 232 225 3.11% 

Murder 

Forcible Sexual Offenses 

Robbery 

Assault Offenses 

Burglary 

Larceny 

Motor Vehicle Thefts 

Arson 

Kidnapping / Abduction 

Forgery / Counterfeiting  

Fraud 

Embezzlement  Bribery / Extortion 

Stolen Property 

Damage to Property 

Weapon Offenses 

Drugs / Narcotic Violations 

Part A Incidents 

2011 2012 
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PART B INCIDENTS 

  2012 Feb. 2011 Feb. 2012 2011 Y.T.D % change 

INCIDENT TYPE      Y.T.D  Y.T.D 2012/2011 

Fraud - Bad Checks 0 1 5 3 66.67% 

Non-Forcible Sexual Offenses 1 1 2 1 100.00% 

Nonviolent Family Offenses 0 0 1 0 100.00% 

O.U.I.L or O.U.I.N 14 22 35 35 0.00% 

Liquor Law Violations 6 14 12 24 -50.00% 

Obstruction of Justice or Escape 30 2 63 3 2000.00% 

Disorderly  Conduct / Vagrancy 4 8 5 11 -54.55% 

State or Local Offenses 0 0 0 0 0.00% 

State / Federal Offenses 0 0 0 0 0.00% 

Local Ordinances - Generic 0 0 0 0 0.00% 

Juvenile Vagrancy 0 0 0 0 0.00% 

Traffic Offenses 0 0 0 0 0.00% 

TOTAL PART "B" INCIDENTS 55 48 123 77 59.74% 
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Traffic       
   Current 2011 Y.T.D. % 
 Feb. 12 Feb. 11 Y.T.D. Y.T.D. Change 
Crashes 113 127 275 262 4.96% 

Traffic Citations 512 279 1045 621 68.28% 

 

Fraud - Bad Checks 

Non-Forcible Sexual … 

Nonviolent Family Offenses 

O.U.I.L or O.U.I.N 

Liquor Law Violations 

Obstruction of Justice or … 

Disorderly  Conduct / … 

State or Local Offenses 

State / Federal Offenses 

Local Ordinances - Generic 

Juvenile Vagrancy 

Traffic Offenses 

Part B Incidents 

2011 2012 
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